EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL COUNCILS' LIAISON COMMITTEE MINUTES

Date:	Monday, 4 July 2016	Time:	7.32 - 9.08 pm	
Place:	Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping			
Members Present:	Representing Epping Forest District Council:			
	Councillors J Lea (Chairman), E Webster, M Sartin, A Boyce and J H Whitehouse			
	Other Councillors:			
	Councillors N Bedford, G Mohindra and J Philip			
	Representing Essex County Council:			
	County Councillors A Jackson, V Metcalfe, J M Whitehouse and R Gadsby			
	Representing Local Councils:			
	R Northwood (Sheering Parish Council), K O'Brien (Buckhurst Hill Parish Council), E Walsh (Loughton Town Council), D Wixley (Loughton Town Council), R Morgan (Matching Parish Council), S Jackman (North Weald Bassett Parish Council), J Bicknell (Ongar Town Council), E Burn (Theydon Bois Parish Council) and V Evans (Epping Upland Parish Council)			
Apologies:	Epping Forest District Council –			
	Councillors B Rolfe			
	Essex County Council –			
	Councillors M McEwen, J Knapman, and C C Pond			
	Parish/Town Councils: -			
	K White (Chigwell Parish Council), A Jones (Moreton, Bobbingworth & The Lavers Parish Council and Stanford Rivers Parish Council), S De Luca (North Weald Bassett Parish Council), J Eldridge (Epping Upland Parish Council), K Richmond (Waltham Abbey Town Council), I Hadley (Fyfield Parish Council) and B Sandler (Chigwell Row)			
Officers Present:	M Warr (Economic Development), K Bean (Planning Policy Manager), pment Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Social Media and Customer Services ocratic Services Officer)		
By Invitation:	T Heath, Rural Challenge Project Manager (Gigaclear)			

By Invitation: T Heath, Rural Challenge Project Manager (Gigaclear)

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Democratic Services Officer reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live to the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its meetings.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the committee held on 29 March 2016 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

4. COMMUNITY RESILIENCE AND WORKSHOP

The Committee received a report from the Chief Executive regarding the Civil Emergency Plans Review Workshop.

It was a requirement of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 that District Councils maintained Civil Emergency Plans and shared information about such plans with partners.

Following changes to the way emergency planning was undertaken across the County and nationally, it was considered a good time to review the existing emergency plans and the roles that local councils had in them.

At the March meeting of the Essex Association of Local Councils (Epping), it was agreed that the District Emergency Planning Officer prepare a brief workshop for Parish and Town Council clerks to review the following:

- (a) Existing relevant emergency plans at District/County and National level.
- (b) Civil emergency risks across the District.
- (c) Community Resilience.

It was proposed that this workshop took place the week beginning 26 September or 3 October 2016. The Chief Executive requested that a suitable date, time and location during this period be identified by the local councils. |the workshop could be repeated at different locations and times to suit. The workshop was unlikely to take longer than two hours.

RESOLVED:

That officers source an appropriate date for a Community Resilience Workshop through liaising with local councils.

5. SUPERFAST ESSEX RURAL CHALLENGE PROJECT

The Economic Development Officer gave a presentation to the Committee regarding the Rural Challenge Project of the Superfast Essex Broadband Programme, he was accompanied by Mr T Heath, Rural Challenge Project Manager, Gigaclear.

The Broadband Delivery UK (BDUK) target was to deliver 95% superfast broadband coverage. The county was covered by Superfast Essex, phase 1 had been completed with 87% coverage with 24 Mbps. Phase 2 aimed to provide 95% coverage with a financial contribution from local district authorities. This authority was contributing £84,000 to the scheme.

Through procurement, Gigaclear had been awarded the contract. There would be an impact on 18 District parishes, although not all residents in these areas would have access. To date 84 km of network had been built with 1,100 connection points throughout the district. It was due for completion in early 2017. They could provide connection from the internet into the property and the resident could then take up the service. The connections were made from 11 cabinets which covered the whole of the district and were installed underground being immune to extreme weather events. This infrastructure would lead to disruption in terms of installation, however all areas would be reinstated afterwards. Mr T Heath advised the each cabinet could service 450 homes. He re-assured the committee that his company operated within a permit scheme, they get fined if they exceed this. They try and achieve first time reinstatement with a two year warranty and then go back to sites to make good. They notify residents when they are working in their area. They have contact telephone numbers if residents needed to contact them.

Some Members expressed concern that there were many residents not connected. The Economic Development Officer advised that the areas mentioned were not connected to this particular project. He said that he would contact the company involved and advise them of the issues raised and pass on the contact details to them of the various parish councils affected.

On 13 September 2016 there would be a business breakfast at Mulberry House in High Ongar talking to businesses on this service provision, the event would start at 7.00a.m.

The Economic Development Officer said that the approximate average cost of installation to the property by Gigaclear's appointed contractor was £100.00 for installation, although residents can self install and the option also existed for a local handyperson to be trained by Gigaclear to undertake installations. He asked local councils to advise him of any business which may be interested in carrying out this service.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation regarding Superfast Essex Rural Challenge Project be noted.

6. LOCAL CHARTER - REVIEW

The Local Charter had been drawn up jointly between the District Council and the Town and Parish Councils within the district. The Charter emphasised the importance attached by these bodies to working in partnership in the provision of public services. Also, it enhanced and enriched communications between these bodies to assist the exchange of information, the expression of views and the making of representations.

The Vice-Chairman advised that no further progress had been made since the last committee meeting where she had been asked to review the current charter, along with the Parish Clerk for North Weald Parish Council. Therefore it was proposed that the review should continue with the assistance of E Walsh, Town Clerk for Loughton Town

Council. The finished review would then be referred to the Chief Executive for a consensus view.

RESOLVED:

That the Vice-Chairman of the Committee, the Parish Clerk for North Weald Bassett and the Town Clerk for Loughton complete the draft review of the Local Charter and submit the draft to the Chief Executive.

7. EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN - PROGRESS

The Committee received a progress report regarding the Epping Forest District Local Plan from the Planning Policy Manager.

1. Local Plan Timetable

An updated Local Development Scheme was due to be submitted to the Cabinet on 21 July 2016 to reflect the new timescale for the development of the Local Plan. The key milestones prior to consultation on the Draft Plan scheduled for the Autumn were:

- (a) 6 October 2016 Report to the Cabinet to consider draft plan for consultation.
- (b) 18 October 2016 Report to Full Council.
- (c) 31 October 2016 Start of 6 week formal consultation.

This schedule would tie in with the publication of draft plans by East Herts, Uttlesford and Harlow districts who have all been proposing to publish their draft plans in the Autumn for a 6 week period, seeking representations on their soundness.

The Government had made clear their expectation that all local planning authorities should have a post NPPF local plan in place. This included intervening where no local plan existed to arrange for the plan to be written. One penalty proposed for not having produced a plan, was the loss of New Homes Bonus finances. The Council needed to make good progress this year and it was therefore considered essential to have completed consultation on the Draft Plan Preferred Approach prior to anticipated end of March 2017 cut off date. Consultants NLP, in a report issued in April 2016, had identified 21 authorities most at risk of intervention and this authority had been named.

2. Working with Neighbouring Authorities/Duty to Co-Operate

Further work was being undertaken for developing the housing target for the district and agree at the Co-Operation for Sustainable Development Board how the growth would be distributed across the Housing Market area. This work was being progressed with the 4 authorities within the Strategic Housing Market Area. The Board on 6 June 2016 was provided with an update on progress with the evaluation of the 5 spatial options previously agreed for testing. The Board also received three draft memoranda of understanding; from Highways England covering strategic transport matters, Natural England covering Air Quality and a third to set out the vision for the SHMA area. A final decision on the preferred strategic spatial option was expected on 18 July 2016.

3. Member Workshops

Since the last Committee meeting in March 2016, further workshops had been held on climate change – 24 May 2016 and transport accessibility and parking standards – 31 May 2016. A further workshop was programmed for 16 July 2016 covering development

management policies. A briefing on the proposals for the Local Plan consultation would be held on 28 July 2016.

4. Key Local Plan Evidence

Work continued on finalising the evidence base reports which would be used to inform the policies included in the Draft Plan that the Council would be consulting on later this year.

(a) Green Belt Review

A draft report had been received and officers were providing comments back to the consultants. The results would be used to inform the Draft Plan and would be published as part of the consultation.

(b) Settlement Capacity Work

A draft had been received and officers were collating comments to send to the consultants. All sites identified had been fed into the updated SLAA and the site selection process.

(c) Site Selection and Infrastructure Delivery Work

The Council had appointed consultants Arup to undertake the site selection work in order to provide options on the preferred sites for allocation. Counsel had provided advice on the methodology for site selection of employment, housing and traveller sites had been drafted. Stage 2 of the process was almost complete and notwithstanding a number of logistical problems that were overcome with data, was on track with a challenging timescale. A total of 33 criteria were used to assess all the sites. Officers would be sending out proformas to promoters of sites to ensure that information was correct and up to date which would be important when accessing the availability of sites.

Officers were also preparing on Infrastructure Delivery Plan to support the sites being selected for the Draft Plan.

(d) Other Evidence

Essex County Council had undertaken an historic environment characterisation study of the District with a draft final report now received. Other evidence needing completion included ensuring that the Employment Land Review information was up to date, information for feeding into the tourism section on visitor accommodation needed over the plan period and additional work around the future of the glasshouse industry and transport accessibility work at district level.

5. Neighbourhood Plans

The Council and the Parish have received the examiner's report for the Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood Plan. The Examiner found that it did not meet the basic conditions and it was proposed that the Examiner's report together with the officer recommendation on the way forward would be reported to the Cabinet on 21 July 2016. The report would recommend that the plan would not go to referendum. There were eight other parish and town Councils designated as neighbourhood planning areas:

(i) Chigwell;

- (ii) Epping;
- (iii) Buckhurst Hill;
- (iv) Theydon Bois;
- (v) Loughton;
- (vi) North Weald Bassett;
- (vii)Epping Upland; and
- (viii) Waltham Abbey.

The Portfolio Holder for Planning Policy advised the Committee that they would be hitting the target date of 31 October 2016 for commencing the 6 week consultation period, he added that there would be fewer questions to answer in the consultation. He was confident that there would be fewer further amendments to make as the evidence base was detailed and exhaustive, they had demonstrated under Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning legislation that they had consulted with residents widely. The draft copy of the Local Plan would be available a week before the Cabinet meeting of 6 October for everybody to see. He reminded those present that a briefing would be held on the proposals for the Local Plan consultation on 28 July 2016.

RESOLVED:

That the recent progress made on the Local Plan be noted.

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There was no other business for consideration.

9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The Vice-Chairman asked the Committee about the following:

(a) Reducing the number of Local Council's Liaison Committee (LCLC) meetings

It was felt that the current number of Committee meetings should be reduced from 3 per annum to 2. Members suggested that officers should consult with all the Parish and Town councils to obtain a consensus view and report back to the Committee in November 2016.

RESOLVED:

That Democratic Services liaise with Parish and Town councils to enquire as to the feasibility of reducing the number of LCLC meetings during the year.

(b) Moving the next Local Council's Liaison Committee from 7 November 2016 to a week later

The next Committee meeting would clash with a North Weald Bassett Parish Council meeting, the Vice-Chairman requested that the meeting could be moved to Monday 14 November 2016.

RESOLVED:

That Democratic Services source a new date for the November 2016 meeting of the LCLC.

CHAIRMAN

This page is intentionally left blank